
SOLID WASTE TASK FORCE 
Monday, July 11, 2022 - 11:00 AM 

 
 
Joe Pete Wilson, Chairperson 
 
Chairman Wilson called this Solid Waste Task Force meeting to order at 11:40 AM with the 
following members in attendance: Stephanie DeZalia, Shaun Gillilland, Ken Hughes, Tom 
Scozzafava, Matt Stanley, Ike Tyler, Joe Pete Wilson, Davina Winemiller, Meg Wood, Dan 
Palmer, Mike Mascarenas, and Jim Dougan. Steve McNally was absent.  
 
Also Present: Rob Wick and Dina Garvey. 
 
News Media Present: - Sun Community News 
 
WILSON: Alright, good morning, everyone, got a few agenda items to go over here and at the 
end we’ll get caught up on our glass cleanup situation, but, I’m going to turn things over to Jim for 
an update on the solid waste.  
 
DOUGAN: Okay, the RFP is out. It’s been out for probably 10 days now; they’re due on the 22nd. 
We have received a few questions, so that lets me know that we’ve got some consultants that are 
looking at it. One of the questions for everybody was, do we have to be prepared by a professional 
engineering firm or not? Or could it be someone else that is not necessarily an engineering firm. 
So, we answered, yes, that we would accept from other than just an engineering firm. Perhaps, 
we’ll get bid by someone like DANC or someone like Franklin County, who they have an authority 
that operates things and then we also have the right to reject all proposals. So, we just thought 
opening it up more proposals and if we find that anybody proposes that might, that is a competitor 
trying to write the RFP in a certain way, then we’ll reject that, but that’s a little more detail than 
you wanted, but.  
 
WILSON: Well, no, I actually had a question, I didn’t realize DANC was involved in solid waste.  
 
DOUGAN: They are, they actually, I’m told that they were involved a little bit even in Franklin 
County in that presentation.  
 
WILSON: Alright, thanks 
 
DOUGAN: They might offer a proposal.  
 
WILSON: Any other questions about the solid waste schedule? And then back to you, Jim, on the 
glass crusher.  
 
DOUGAN: Okay, so bids were due for that on the 13th, which is Wednesday of this week. We are 
received a couple of questions. I do, I have a few copies here of at least what our basis of design 
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was, if people want to see what we were looking at, overall. So, basically it’s a unit that we crush 
one to two tons of glass per hour. I will also have a hopper that will except up to 4 feet of material 
and the product that produces is, there’s 3 different products, 1 is, it will take any metal any glass, 
anything that was left in, the majority of the paper will go into the trash bin and then it will produce 
a 3/8th minus product and the product is basically dust. The was our spec, at least.  
 
WILSON: Jim, with the volume of glass that we collect at our transfer stations, how frequently, 
how long will the glass crusher have to run each year, each month, each week to keep up with 
the volume?  
 
DOUGAN: Well, the annual report that we send to DEC every year, which is based off the 
numbers for Serkil, we collect approximately 150 tons per year of glass. So, if you divide that by 
50 weeks, it’s roughly 3 times a week; okay? So, if that crusher operates at a ton an hour, then 
it’s not, it’s only a few hours a week that it’s really going. So, 150-160 hours a year is how much 
it’s going to have to run to keep up with our glass, if they keep up with it.  
 
WILSON: And then the second part of that is, we’ll have time dedicated to handling the end 
products, the trash, the dust?  
 
DOUGAN: Exactly, so I do have, again, I made a few copies, I didn’t make a lot of them, but I’ve 
got a little bit of as sketch of what we think we might do, as far as, how we would set up the sight 
there at the landfill.  
 
WILSON: Because, really crushing is only a portion of this.  
 
DOUGAN: It’s only a portion of what we do there at that site. So, off to the right hand side of the 
paper, I tried to list in numbers the different buildings, the different things that are stored there, 
you know our MERF building, I would propose to put this glass crusher just outside the MERF 
building for anybody that’s been over there. I would have to put in a concrete pad, roughly 10’ 
wide x 40’ long for this to sit on, do a little bit of improvements to the asphalt, put a retaining wall 
in and then tie the electric in, which there should be enough electric in the existing building and 
then where you can see the tires stockpiled on site, right now, we would move those out of that 
area, stockpile them, temporarily, out where the Town of Lewis’ transfer station used to be, on 
the other side and stockpile glass in that corner of that large asphalt parking lot, so that it’s all 
contained. That’s just an idea of a site layout that we’ve looked at so far. I can wait and see bids, 
but then I’ll be reaching out to our civil term contractor to give us a price and our general 
construction contractor to give us a price that, we’ll do the site work, but have a contractor pour 
that concrete pad that we would set the unit on.  
 
WILSON: So, would it help to, if more towns were using the Smartsheet on recycling collection 
and trash collection? Would that information be helpful in planning out on what is the flow of glass? 
You know, when we collect more, when do we collect less? Would this be a good reason to push 
more towns to start using the Smartsheet?  
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DOUGAN: I think there’s a lot of reasons to push using the Smartsheet, but yes, at least then we 
have the data, instead of me trying to get it out of Serkil or each town, when you might have called. 
So, right now we have 3 towns that are using Smartsheet. Town of Keene has been using it for 
quite some time, Town of Essex is using it now and just last week, Wilmington joined. I know St. 
Armand and Moriah are both taking part of our pilot, once we did get the consultant onboard with 
that, but anybody that wants to get on that, I don’t know, Joe Pete, you or Ken can talk about, it’s 
relatively easy to use and it does give us more information.  
 
WILSON: Have you had any feedback, yet, Ken?  
 
HUGHES: Yeah, Hugh Harwood killed it for us, got it setup, came out and met with everybody. 
We actually did have a small issue with collection and, but the sheet was very clear about what 
the issue was and it’s been really terrific, we’ve done it twice now and technology, it provides data 
and that’s what we need, we need to make data driven decisions, this is a great way to get that 
started and I couldn’t say enough about the success of it and my transfer station manager is not 
super great with technology, but he’s tuned into this and so, now, as Jim had said earlier is, there’s 
no question about whether we actually did call. There’s no question about whether that you did 
receive it, it’s all right there and easily trackable. So, 100% for me.  
 
WILSON: Alright and I would echo what Ken said and I would also say… 
 
WINEMILLER: I’m sorry, I just wanted to tell Jim, I am very happy that we’re going to be getting 
the Smartsheet. One of the issues that we’ve been having recently is apparently the driver for 
Serkil has been complaining to anyone who’s around, why, did they tell us to come pick up this 
trash? We look back, no one called for trash, no one called for tin or whatever, so this is frustrating 
the drivers for Serkil, as well, and I just got a question, if I may, on your diagram. You have your 
tire storage area, what happens to the tires? Where do they go?  
 
DOUGAN: There’s a, I believe the name of the company is Wheelabrator, that they’re hauled off 
to. I can look that up to verify, but they’re recycled. Serkil, that’s part of their responsibility.  
 
WINEMILLER: Okay, and are they taken out a few times a year?  
 
DOUGAN: Yeah, there’s a pretty good stockpile there, right now, that I’ve got Serkil working on 
cleaning up. They’re supposed to be taken out of there more often than they have been; okay? 
But, really they should be going out of there at least every couple of months.  
 
WINEMILLER: Thank you.  
 
DOTY: Back to the crusher, itself. I’m confused as to whether, once, I am going to assume the 
County will purchase that, will it be leased, if Serkil stays, as a contract agent with and even 
knowing that we take in 150 tons a year, can be a source of revenue for other areas to bring glass 
to it. Along with that, what are the estimated amounts in our mountains of glass? So, you know 
does this company that sells us the crusher, services it as well? Because we’ve looked at glass 
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crusher for North Elba and there is considerable maintenance to the teeth due to the grinding. So, 
it isn’t just a purchase, it’s pretty frequent maintenance, as well.  
 
WILSON: So, I think you hit a good point, at all these things and I think tires, too. We’ve got to 
start looking, what’s the end use? How can we generate some money to continue operation and 
have you some thoughts on that?  
 
DOUGAN: So, we put products like this out to bid, I don’t know what we have until the bids come 
back. I can tell you what my basis of design was, which is the crusher that you just have taken a 
look at. A firm that’s located, down south of Albany, not too far away, they service things, if we 
need them, they will sell us replacement parts. We’ll be looking to all of that, once we have 
received the bids; okay? As far as the lease goes, I guess that’s up to this Committee or up to the 
Board, we don’t currently lease any of our other equipment that’s operated by Serkil. So, assuming 
and you can correct me, but I am assuming it’s going to continue to be operated in the same way 
that, you know, the containers are, the trucks are, the backhoe that’s over there that they use, the 
baler that’s used. I’m assumed that it’s going to be that same thing, but if you’re looking at 
something different than I should get that direction from this Committee.  
 
PALMER: And again, I think part of what we proposed was that with the new contract with Serkil, 
we would charge them an additional $25 a ton for all waste outside of the transfer system. So, 
any waste coming in, right now, that goes to Serkil, they’re collecting, but we’re not. So, what Jim 
had talked about was, there’s probably, approximately 3,000 tons of that material that’s currently 
going through the system and we’re not obtaining any revenue on it, what we said was we expect 
the same $25 a ton that we actual charge the towns, so that would generate another $75,000.00 
a year in revenue for the system, based on that number of 3,000 tons. So, that was part of the 
glass justification, you know, whatever it costed us for the glass crusher, we would probably 
recoup in a year or two with the increase tonnage charge.  
 
DOUGAN: The other thing that I’d like to do after the initial setup is applying to New York State 
DEC for beneficial use determination for that glass. If you look at my site plan there, you’ll see 
that we’ve got an area that said gravel storage, I would be planning to take that clean glass and 
mix it in, as I crush that unprocessed gravel and turn it into real gravel for us to use in the future. 
So, I won’t be taking products and looking for a place to get rid of it. I’ll mix it in and put it in parking 
lots and roads. That is my intent.  
 
WILSON: Yeah, so that’s not a direct revenue but if offsets on having to spend money on gravel.  
 
DOUGAN: Yeah, 150 tons a year, not a huge amount, but absolutely.  
 
WILSON: And it’s 150 tons of gravel we don’t have to truck from somewhere, too.  
 
DOUGAN: Of course I have, with the engineer that I have a sitting up there, who has probably 
sewer benefits for the use of that, you know, in certain sand beds and other things. Both of these 
guys with Community Resources know that might be something that we can look at as well.  
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PALMER: The other thing, I think we can do, honestly is, I don’t know about the other counties, 
where they are with their glass. I know Franklin County uses their glass, but I’m not sure they 
have a crusher or not.  
 
DOUGAN: I think they just put it on a hard surface, concrete or asphalt and run it over with a track 
machine and then they use it as landfill dust.  
 
PALMER: So, we, potentially could open that up to other places for a crushing fee, so to speak.  
 
DOUGAN: I think we could. It might be a source for revenue from other people that are looking 
for a place to get rid of it.  
 
DOTY: The closest we found was Jefferson County.  
 
DOUGAN: Yup 
 
WILSON: Since we talked about tires and beneficial use, can we grind tires and use crumbs for 
trail building? Like I think of the amount of money I spent, last year, on foot trails and mountain 
bike trails, this year and parking lots to go with them. Can we get a beneficial use to use ground 
tires?  
 
DOUGAN: I haven’t looked into that; I am sure that it’s a different machine. I think you have to 
have a sidewall cutter, first, where you take the sidewalls off and then, the ones I have seen 
previously, normally it’s just the small tires, we still wouldn’t be able to do the large tires, like 
loader tires and things like that, but yeah.  
 
WILSON: Maybe I’ll put that back in my mind for once we’re… 
 
DOUGAN: That station is Keene is a good place to have one of those (laughter).  
 
WILSON: Alright, so one last plug for Smartsheets and my transfer station manager would be 
happy to come to and work with your transfer station manager, if they have questions, he loves 
it.  
 
TYLER: I just want to please add that Westport’s not going to have it.  
 
WILSON: The Smartsheet?  
 
TYLER: Yeah 
 
WILSON: Alright 
 
TYLER: I am just saying that the situation is there that it’s not going to work for us, right now, 
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maybe some point down the road, but I would like to see it work.  
 
WILSON: Alright, thanks.  
 
WINEMILLER: Can I just make a quick mention about the tires, the grinding of the tires, that could 
also be used on the playgrounds in place of wood chips and it’s very expensive to purchase the 
rubber chips, I guess you would call them, for the playground, but that’s one thing that our 
insurance company had wanted us to do at our playground and I’m sure that all over the County. 
So, that’s, there’s a lot that we could use those ground tires for.  
 
WILSON: And keeping them local, saving trucking. Alright, before we move on to our last agenda 
item, anymore thoughts about the glass?  
Then the last item is, back to glass, but this is concerning the glass cleanup. Dan, I’m not sure if 
you want to start?  
 
PALMER: Again, you know, to a certain extend we’ve tried to kind of maintain our distance as it 
relates to this, because, obviously it’s between Serkil and the West Family and how they end up 
sorting that out. I do think and I guess I would ask this Committee, that I think, if we are going to 
renew with Serkil and I previously done a memo to you on May 26th regarding the terms, if we got 
that contact going and got it in place, I think it probably would help in terms the negotiations 
between Serkil and the West Family. I don’t know how much Serkil’s going to negotiate in terms 
of what they’re going to do, if they don’t think they have a County contract in place. They’re, 
without being too obvious, they are a LLC, if they have no business, they probably have nothing 
to lose, so we are their only customer. So, I think if the intent of the Board, of the Committee is to 
go ahead with the Serkil contract, I think it would probably serve us to get it in place and get it 
done.  
 
WILSON: So, we’re moving a resolution to recommend it to the Full Board?  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Yes 
 
WILSON: And I second by? Mr. Gillilland.  
 
GILLILLAND: No, no, I’m not seconding it, I’m not on this Committee.  
 
WILSON: Alright, I’m sorry, then I need a second from someone who is on the Committee.  
 
MONTY: How long is the contract for?  
 
PALMER: What we talked about, Jim, was three years.  
 
WILSON: Let’s get a second.  
 
MONTY: We originally talked about that we haven’t changed anything?  
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PALMER: We haven’t changed a thing, everything that was in that original, I do have copies that 
I had given you.  
 
MONTY: No, no, I just didn’t know, because it’s been awhile. I didn’t know if things had changed.  
 
PALMER: No, I haven’t proposed any changes to it. What we’re looking at was what we had 
originally laid out.  
 
MONTY: Okay, I’ll second it.  
 
WILSON: Okay, thank you, Jim.  
 
GARVEY: Mr. Monty isn’t on the Committee.  
 
MONTY: I ought to be.  
 
WILSON: Not on my official list.  
 
MONTY: Well, what am I doing here. I thought since it was in Lewis.  
 
WILSON: Davina is, Ike, Derek, Ken, Steve’s not here.  
 
GARVEY: Ken, Derek, Joe Pete and Davina are voting members.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So, we’re not a standing committee?  
 
PALMER: Yeah, you are.  
 
WILSON: Yeah, we’re on the Committee List.  
 
PALMER: Special Committee.  
 
WILSON: You’re not on the official list either.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Why would I be; I do over a 100 ton a month.  
 
MONTY: The landfill’s in Lewis, so why would I be?  
 
WILSON: So, I’ll make the motion, I’ll officially make the motion to proceed with the contract with 
Serkil and then I need a second from either, Davina, Ike, Derek, Ken, Steve’s not here. Ike, thank 
you for the second.  
 
TABLED 
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RECOMMENDATION TO THE DPW COMMITTEE TO RENEW THE SOLID WASTE CONTACT 
WITH SERKIL FOR AN ADDITIONAL 3 (THREE) YEARS 
Wilson, Tyler 
 
WILSON: Any questions?  
 
DOTY: It’s not that I don’t want to see us save a relationship, but I would like to know who else is 
in this business that should plans fail, we go to? Because, I’m more concerned that there’s nobody 
else out there.  
 
PALMER: Well, Casella, Casella is the only other player. They bid the last time when we went out 
to RFP, we actually had two bids, Serkil and Casella and Casella was significantly more. Part of 
the problem with Casella’s bid originally was, that it contained within that bid a surcharge for all 
of the outside stations. So, if it was going to go St. Armand’s there was a $800.00 surcharge to 
pick up the bin, didn’t matter if it was full or empty. It was going to be a $800.00 charge just for 
the bin. That’s the way it was for even Minerva, North Hudson, any of those outside stations, there 
was a surcharge per bin to pick up, which significantly increased the overall cost to us.  
 
DOTY: Somewhat related, is our RFP going to help us determine a comparative analysis between 
Serkil and what it would take for the County to run the landfill?  
 
PALMER: Well, we already know that. Jim, did do that and based upon the staffing that we would 
need, how much more was it, Jim, than we’re currently paying?  
 
DOUGAN: It was a couple hundred thousand dollars a year and I didn’t figure in your legacy costs.  
 
PALMER: Right 
 
DOUGAN: A couple hundred thousand dollars a year and felt that there was some places that we 
would pick up some benefit, but that’s a crap shoot, until I know the numbers of data from the 
Smartsheets.  
 
PALMER: Yup, but it definitely would cost us more to run then it does now.  
 
DOUGAN: Being public like we are and you know, more people, the holidays and time off and 
vacation and all the stuff that we give out as benefits, because they would still be County 
employees, so right off the bat, that would be 3 or 4 more employees to basically provide the 
same level of service.  
 
GILLILLAND: We got a motion and a second, right?  
 
WILSON: Yup and any further questions?  
 
GILLILLAND: Yeah, I want to, I guess it was mentioned between the West family’s attorney and 
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Serkil’s attorney, I’m not privy to the, I don’t have with me the letter the West family’s attorney 
sent to Serkil, but I do have here the response that Serkil gave back to the West family on the 
cleanup and I think there’s some concerning issues there. I’m not speaking specifically, I’ll put my 
Willsboro Supervisor hat on, they’re saying, well, first of all, out there, if you’ve seen it, if you’ve 
looked on Google Earth, the trucks and stuff came out, it was basically unscreened glass bottles 
with everything else, that anybody else threw in. Now, anybody that has a transfer station, knows 
that people throw trash and everything else into there the bottles are, into your glass. I’ve heard 
complaints from my colleagues that will verify this. So, they just took these things and dumped 
them, now this is just background, and that’s all out there, on this farm. So, my client will remove 
glass only, and only that material on your client’s property. So, they’re going to actually go through 
the work of not picking up stuff that’s mixed in with the glass. My client does not have a firm plan, 
but should have one forming in the next 1-2 weeks and they talked about the schedule that they’re 
going to, moving glass 7:00 am to 3:00 pm and they won’t do it during funerals, at the cemetery, 
which is right in front of the property. Again, reiterated, we will only do glass removal. My client 
will remove glass, only, again. We will not conduct site remediation, our client may conduct your 
remediation and engage the services of Mr. Buckley. What the West’s were asking for was an 
independent verification and a clerk of works, to insure that the work was being done adequately 
and nothing was being left. So, what they’re going to have to do, because they have bulldozed 
this glass before, into sand, into the ground, stuff like that, is they’re not going to remediate, so if 
they dig a hole, they’re not going to fill it in. The West’s want to sell the property in order to pay 
for the care of the, of Mr. West who has more and more advanced dementia, but if they just leave 
it as a pot marked lunar-scape, that’s going to be a problem. The other agreements, they will 
include the insurance as additional insured for the West family and they will not, they are stating 
that they will not pay the West family’s attorney’s fees which is pretty big and, but again, it says, 
we will not remove, we will remove glass only and will not conduct remediation and they will also 
not pay for a clerk of the works verification on the property. So, you know, my feeling about Serkil 
is, must like Mr. Wood, they are in the solid waste business, they’re supposed to know what the 
law is, the law is you don’t dump glass. You know, a non-hazardous material, you can store it for 
up to 6 months, after 6 months to becomes an illegal waste facility and they knew this and they 
did it for years. I think those conditions that they came back to the West family with are 
unacceptable. I think they should remediate the land, because they screwed it up. I also think that 
they should also pay for services of an engineer or another independent verification.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Not to debate this, this is a double edge sword. They weren’t bringing that stuff 
in there without the West’s knowledge. You can’t tell me that they’re running trucks in there and 
dumping glass.  
 
GILLILLAND: That’s not the point.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Let me just finish. This much tonnage of glass, without the property owner giving 
some kind of a consensus, I just find that hard to believe, that they were doing this, just because, 
yeah, go ahead and bring your glass in, we’re going to crush it, mix it up with our sand. I mean, 
there’s two sides of this thing.  
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GILLILLAND: I disagree with you, and I disagree because there’s 3 sides.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Yup 
 
GILLILLAND: They were, they were acting as an agent, as our contractor to dispose of this 
material, legally.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I’m not disputing that.  
 
GILLILLAND: Okay and there was and so, if we’re going and doing it and purposely making an 
illegal waste facility, okay? And without a written contact, then if you want to tell the balance of 
fault, the balance of fault is on them.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Who’s been charged? Has there been charges filed by DEC?  
 
GILLILLAND: The DEC has a consent order against the West family, because they are the 
property owners.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: They own the property, correct. So, we agreed to go in and clean the glass up, 
correct?  
 
GILLILLAND: Serkil did.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Serkil did, right, but now they want this all manicured and everything else.  
 
GILLILLAND: They don’t want it manicured, they just don’t want a moonscape there, holes and 
everything. They want, basically of someone is going to do a big construction project on their 
property, they want it…. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: What was the motivation? What drove the West to take this glass onto their 
property?  
 
GILLILLAND: What drove it?  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Yeah, what was their reward for accepting this glass? Was there any 
compensation?  
 
GILLLILLAND: If there was any compensation, Serkil would have come up with it and said, this is 
what we paid, but they haven’t come up with that.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So, why did they allow them, to mix it with their… 
 
GILLILLAND: Because the guy had dementia and they could take advantage of him.  
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SCOZZAFAVA: And nobody knew about this years?  
 
GILLILLAND: I didn’t, it wasn’t Jim and I walked on that property, the first time and we knew about 
it. Actually, it wasn’t until, Mr. West had a stump dump back there, which was permanent, but 
because it was a stump dump, a permanent stump dump, it is subject to PESH inspection. The 
PESH inspector walked on to go take a look at it from a PESH point of view and it pointed out to 
him that this was a problem, there’s trash in the glass, he didn’t know how long it had been sitting 
there, but that’s illegal to have other stuff inside what your harmless recyclable was and he said, 
you better watch out, because if DEC comes down here, they’re going to nail you. He must have 
talked to DEC, because DEC went down there and the letter came out at about the same time as 
when I raised to this Board, the problem that was going on there. So, I want it done, I would love 
to have Serkil, Serkil come back and do it, but Serkil, I don’t think should be fighting any of these 
things that they’re asking for, particularly, you know.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So, can we, so let’s say, Serkil says we’re not going to do, I mean can we go in 
and do this kind of work on private property with County equipment and hire contractors and go 
in and do this?  
 
PALMER: I think they only way that you could do that, potentially, is that if you came down to 
some kind of a court settlement that said, okay, this is how we’re going to have to be taken care 
of.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Right and I understand, Shaun, the position you’re put in.  
 
GILLILLAND: I am speaking as the Supervisor, Serkil creating a waste facility.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I get that, but there are a couple of areas in my community where there’s all kinds 
of junk cars and god knows what else in there and they filed bankruptcy, so they had to be pulled 
off the tax sale, but, you know, ultimately, let’s say the County ends up owning it, am I going to 
come up and say to this Board of Supervisors, I want that property cleaned up, get in there and 
take them.  
 
WINEMILLER: I just wanted to ask, I know we had talked previously, Shaun, about that property, 
the West property is actually some type of a gravel pit and we had talked about the possibility of 
the County purchasing that, for several reasons and you just mentioned that it is for sale.  
 
GILLILLAND: They do intend to sell it, yeah.  
 
WINEMILLER: Is that something that we should be looking at, seriously looking at?  
 
GILLILLAND: in my meeting with the West family, on Friday, I didn’t, I meant they mentioned it, I 
didn’t react to it at all. But, if Jim thinks.  
 
WINEMILLER: Is it a valuable piece for us? Would it help us with our gravel needs?  
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GILLILLAND: I don’t think there’s any gravel left out there.  
 
DOUGAN: That’s a sand pit, I would have to look at, I had heard that he brought the sand, the 
actual pit was getting close to where his property lines were. So, I don’t know how much farther, 
I would have to look at all those things.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Is there a mining permit?  
 
DOUGAN: Yeah, there’s a mining permit with DEC and with APA. He’s got permit from of them, 
so I would have to look at those. I haven’t done any of that. I mean the sand, I believe was even 
used by Willsboro in the past, as road sand. I don’t know if it still is or not.  
 
GILLILLAND: No, yes, we have used it for truck sand for winter sand.  
 
DOTY: Yes, and moving forward, if we do okay further contracting with Serkil, I am assuming it 
would be conditional on all of those items of bringing that property to a certain state and again, 
it’s just an assumption.  
 
WOOD: Completely 
 
DOTY: Completely, exactly.  
 
HUGHES: That would take a long term and we need to enter into some kind of a contract with 
somebody.  
 
TYLER: Listen, you know, I’ve been on this Board for a short time, but the short time I’ve been 
here, it seems like we’re just being held ransom from these hoodlums out here that are running 
our dumps. I’m thinking seriously, we should look at taking it over, it’s going to cost us more 
money, it’s going to be less headaches in the long run and maybe we can make some money off 
the recycling, to offset what we pay, but I think, you know if we keep going down this road, it’d 
going to be doing the same thing with the same bunch and what’s going to be next? They’re going 
to be robbing you again, somehow. We should, seriously, take control of it and have our own 
people do it. That’s my option on it.  
 
WINEMILLER; I agree with you, Ike, I really do and I know, Dan, has pointed out the discrepancy 
in the money, poor, Jim, I mean, last Saturday, I was on the phone with Jim, with issues with our 
transfer station, so I mean the headaches are that being caused by this, the problems, like this, 
with the property, with the land, with someone else. There’s just so many things that are adding 
up to the County being held hostage by this company, when is enough, enough?  
 
MASCARENAS: Now, I have two things, the conversation has changes a little bit. I don’t disagree 
with you. I have all the faith in the world in Jim Dougan and I think he could do a great job at 
running it ourselves. I hate to have to put that added pressure on him, however, I’m not sure we 
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can ramp up in time with this contract ending this year. I think this committee is trying to move 
solid waste to a place where we do get some of those things long term that we want it to be, but 
I don’t know in a few months’ time if we’re going to have the time to get the people in place, again, 
Jim’s primary mission at Highway and correct me, if I’m wrong, Jim, you know, he’s maintenance, 
roads, bridges, right and in the winter he need him to plow. In the summer and spring, we need 
him to pave roads, what’s going to become his mission, day one, is garbage, because if that starts 
piling up at any plant, he’s not going to be paving roads, he’s not going to be plowing roads, 
because he’s going to be answering to the requests of the communities that need garbage pickup. 
So, I agree wholeheartedly, but I am going to tell you that we need the people that can do the job, 
without that, Jim’s going to be sending his highway crews to be picking up garbage at transfer 
stations and everything else that we charge him with is going to go on the back burner. So, I just 
want to say one more thing before my time is up. Shaun, in terms of, DEC and I don’t have it in 
front of me and I have looked at it, what does the order say? To me, Serkil should be meeting 
DEC’s order, whatever that order says. To me it should include the contents that were included 
in the glass. I don’t know what their formal letter actually says, but to me, DEC is the regulatory 
agency that providing oversight. If they make DEC happy, that’s what I think we should be doing 
and if there’s garbage in that glass, then that’s part of it. That should be taken care of. I don’t think 
they pick around it, to put in the bins; right? It just seems kind of silly and I’m not putting you on 
the spot. I’ll look at the… 
 
GILLILLAND: I don’t have the letter in front of me.  
 
MASCARENAS: I don’t have it in front of me.  
 
WILSON: Let me just follow-up, so I would echo on what Mike is saying, that this contract provides 
us continuous coverage at our transfer stations, even though it may not be ideal right now and it 
gives our consultant a chance to go through our system, come up with a plan that we then have 
time to implement, because I think Mike’s absolutely right, to get on CDL drivers on short notice 
is going to be a tough, tough deadline to meet and if our whole system is in flux, you know, let’s 
buy this time to concern that. That’s what I would ask.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I think what Mike just stated, follow the consent order. I mean that consent order 
must say within that order what’s require to clean that site up and then I back 100%, Serkil should 
go in there and follow whatever that consent says and do it that way. Is this additional, the West’s 
are requesting more than what the consent states?  
 
GILLILLAND: Yeah, I don’t, it says to remove all of the waste.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Which they’ve agreed to do; correct? Serkil?  
 
GILLILLAND: Now they’re quibbling about, you know, they’re saying the garbage and other stuff 
and there’s oil cans and things like that, they’re claim there’s no proof that they dropped it there. 
I mean that’s quibbling. Clean the damn property up and leave it to the owner as it should.  
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SCOZZAFAVA: And the other thing, is on, I’m going to tell you, come down to Moriah on Saturday, 
or come down any day, Tuesday through Saturday and we’re doing 75-80 tons a month; okay? 
This system, you can’t shut this system down or run it with what we have available both the town 
and county level. It can’t happen and let me tell you, if we go down, Westport’s going to be dealing 
with some hurt and so is Crown Point. Crown Point we get 90% of the people from Crown Point 
come to Moriah. In fact, I wanted to bring up to Dan, do we still have that law where people can’t 
bring their waste in from an outside area, into the County?  
 
PALMER: No, we’ve never had a flow control law.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I thought we did.  
 
PALMER: No, no, we talked about it. We never really did it. We only have what’s called a Cradle 
to Grave Law. So, if I find it over the bank and it’s got your name on it, then I can.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: So, can we keep Vermonters out of our transfer station, because they’re coming 
in?  
 
PALMER: Well, I think any town could establish that they only allow residence. You can ask for 
stickers or you can do those kinds of things at the local lever.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: We have 4 campgrounds, DEC and I’m so tempted to throw them out, but I won’t 
do it.  
 
WINEMILLER: So, I just wanted to suggest that perhaps, I understand, okay, I really do, that we 
need more time if the County was to take over on its own and I just wanted to clarify with Dan, 
you said, this contract that we’re talking about now, with Serkil is a 3-year contract?  
 
PALMER: Well, no, the current contact we have with Serkil was a 5-year with a right to renew 
within, the suggestion of the Committee, prior, was to go with a 3-year contract.  
 
WINEMILLER: So, perhaps we could do something even shorter, but kind of put a little more teeth 
into it to make them clean up the glass, you know, maybe do a 20-month contract with the caveat 
that they are following up and doing what they’re supposed to be doing?  
 
PALMER: Well, I mean we can certainly propose something different. It doesn’t mean that Serkil’s 
going to agree.  
 
WINEMILLER: Right, true.  
 
DOTY: Basically, Davina covered my concerns, however, I do think even though Casella’s last 
bid was excessive, it might be worth speaking with them again and I also support a shorter term, 
like a 2-year term, because from opinions that we’ve seen here, already, it’s coming back in our 
realm. There’s probably not much discussion there. So, you know, we have a couple year period 
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and tackle what we need to do and get organized.  
 
WOOD: Yeah, I’m not on this Task Force and I have been to other meetings, but I support if we 
can find out from our study and whatever else, however long it takes, I support that we time the 
contract along those lines. Our problems our due to our own problems in our town with our transfer 
station, but we have three carting services operating in our town. I live 7 ½ miles west of Route 9 
and they go almost all the way out my way, some of them and I understand, the minimal cost per 
month for these families or individuals is $50.00-$55.00. So, I think if you look at that kind of cost, 
I can try and get information on what the percentage of our town people use the private services, 
one of which is Casella. I just, I don’t want to see this can get kicked down the road, again.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Yeah, we looked at the last time we went to bid, I mean in my town, we have 3, 
we have Casella, we have ACE and we got JP, a new one out of Ti, that seems to be doing very 
well. I don’t know how many times I’ve been on the phone with Casella or ACE, because they 
never picked their garbage up, they missed a day that they were supposed to and I’ve got people 
calling me from all over town, because the garbage is all over the place, especially when you get 
into an area like Grover Hills, where the houses are in close proximity, but I think Dan pointed out, 
earlier, when this system was designed, okay, it was a countywide system and these little station 
that we all over there, that you know they transfer to a big, they don’t give a hoot about you, they 
don’t want you.  
 
WINEMILLER: I know.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: You’re going to be driving to Moriah, or you’re going to driving to Ticonderoga or 
you’re going to be going to North Elba, or Schroon Lake, where they have compactors. The rest 
of you? They don’t want anything to do with you. I’m just telling you upfront. That’s why we have 
a countywide system in place, because the smaller towns with the small populations, they’re not 
going to tell with you. Dan, am I right or wrong?  
 
PALMER: Absolutely 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Absolutely, so, I’m just saying, don’t throw the baby out with the bathwater.  
 
WILSON: Yeah, so back to our motion then, that this committee recommend the Serkil contract 
with 3 years. It seems like people are in agreement that we need to keep a service in place. The 
term of it, how long is it? Is it 2 years or 3? You know, what I’m trying to get from right now is do 
we make the recommendation at 3 or do we want to defer this to the next DPW meeting? Because 
we are also running out of time.  
 
WINEMILLER: I would make an amendment to the resolution that it, reduce it to a 2-year and 
have some language in there for a caveat for this cleanup on the West property.  
 
WILSON: And for that I think we need Dan Manning to review the contract.  
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WINEMILLER: To mirror the DEC requirements for the West family. I think that that should be 
part of it.  
 
WILSON: And how do we do that? Is it possible to do it? I can’t answer that. I mean that’s definitely 
a Dan Manning question.  
 
WINEMILLER: Well, as far as I’m concerned, because Serkil is a contract for Essex County and 
in our contract, it’s stated, right Dan, that they were supposed to.  
 
PALMER: Properly dispose of.  
 
WINEMILLER: Properly dispose of this, the glass and they did not do that, based on our current 
contract with them, I think we have every right in the world to require them to clean up that 
property.  
 
MASCARENAS: Yeah, do we have to decide this today?  
 
WILSON: Well, and that’s part of what I’m getting at.  
 
MASCARENAS: Can we table it and talk about it another month and give us the opportunity to 
contact Serkil, around what Shaun’s concerns are? Because to see what they’re intent is. It seems 
like when we brought them to the table the last time, they were a little more receptive when we 
had our meeting with them and maybe we have to have that discussion with them, again.  
 
WILSON: Yeah, I think that’s a good idea. Shaun, do you want to weight in?  
 
GILLILLAND: I will just say, I don’t recall seeing a letter, I mean I know there was some things, a 
letter said what they wanted, I didn’t actually see the letter. I’m not sure Dan Manning has the 
original West letter, but I will share this particular response from Serkil’s attorney with Dan and 
possibly, he can review the demands, you know, that the Wests are making and make a 
recommendation has to what’s a fair inclusion and what’s not.  
 
WILSON: So, maybe a table in this Committee, makes sense, while we work through some of 
this, with Dan Manning and come up with a sensible strategy that fits where we’re at right now.  
 
WINEMILLER: I would make a motion to table.  
 
TYLER: I’ll second that.  
 
WILSON: And it’s tabled.  
Any other discussion about solid waste.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I thought I was on this Committee.  
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WILSON: That was about the study, being a pilot.  
But, okay, I make a motion that we invite Tom to our committee. Can I get a second? Ken. All in 
favor of inviting Tom? The motion carries.  
 
WINEMILLER: Joe Pete, I would like to make a motion that we invite Mr. Monty to join the 
committee, as well.  
 
WILSON: Yup and I’ll second that. All in favor of inviting Jim.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA: At least I didn’t pack up everything and walk out of the room.  
 
GILLILLAND: Dina, can you have Judy know to send out a memo?  
 
GARVEY: Yes 
 
WILSON: Alright, with that then, thank you, everybody. This is a hard topic and we’re making 
process.  
 

AS THERE WAS NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO COME BEFORE THIS SOLID WASTE 
TASK FORCE IT WAS ADJOURNED AT 12:32 PM. 

 
 

Respectively Submitted,  
 
 
Dina L. Garvey, Deputy Clerk 
Board of Supervisors  


